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Federal M ne Safety and Heal th Revi ew Conmm ssi on
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABOR Cvil Penalty Proceedi ngs
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. NORT 79-14-P
PETI TI ONER A.C. No. 44-03613-03001
V.

No. 5-A M ne
HARMAN M NI NG CORPORATI ON,
RESPONDENT Docket No. NORT 79-51-P
A. C. No. 44-04559-03001

No. 3-A M ne

Docket No. NORT 79-57-P
A. C. No. 44-03614-03004V

No. 5-B M ne
DECI SI ON

Appearances: Leo J. MG nn, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor,
Department of Labor, for Petitioner;
Robert M Richardson, Esqg., and Peter Richardson,
Esq., Richardson, Kenper, Hancock & Davis, Bluefield,
West Virginia, for Respondent

Bef or e: Admi ni strative Law Judge M chel s

On June 19, 1979, a hearing was held in Abingdon, Virginia,
for the above-captioned cases, at which both parties were
represented by counsel. At this hearing, the follow ng action
was taken on the cases:

NCORT 79-14-P

In this case, counsel for Petitioner noved to withdraw its
petition for the assessnent of civil penalties regarding the
al | eged viol ati ons docketed therein (Tr. 4). (FOOTNOTE 1) As grounds for
t he proposed action, Petitioner stated the foll ow ng:
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Your Honor, Docket Nunmber NORT 79-14-P consists of four alleged
violations of 30 CFR 75.1710 issued in April, 1978. As the result
of facts uncovered prior to this hearing, MHA noves at this tine
to withdraw the petition for the assessment of civil penalty for
each of these violations on the basis that a technica
i nvestigation of the m ne conducted on May 5th, or prior to May
5th and reported to MSHA on May -- excuse me, on May 5, 1976, a
petition for nodification under Section 30, seeking to be
rel eased fromthe requirenents of 75.1710. The technica
i nvestigation was subsequently conducted, in which it was
determ ned that the mining heights ranged fromthirty-seven to
forty-eight inches, and that the m ne consisted of undul ating
bottom conditions. 1In each of the instances involved in the
al l egations here, they were term nated on the basis that the
application was withdrawn and the m nes pernmanently seal ed and
abandoned in May, 1978. In a letter fromthe district office to
the MSHA national office, received in May, 1978, this was
verified, and that the bottom conditions were undul ati ng and the
m ne mning heights did range below the mninumforty-two inches
requi renent. Because of the | arge nunmber of petitions for
nodi fication which were currently under considerati on and because
of the change over fromthe Interior to Labor, the decision was
not issued until Novenber, 1978, at which tine the petition was
granted and the proceedi ng was di sm ssed. Further investigation
with the MSHA field office determined that at the tine violations
were issued, the mne mning heights did range to a | ow of
thirty-seven inches, below the mandatory requirenent of forty-two
i nches, and the bottomwas continually undul ating at that height.
And that MSHA felt it could not sustain the burden of proof
requi red under 75.1710, and noves to withdraw the petition
(Tr. 4-6).

Respondent did not object to the proposed action. Thereupon
a decision was issued fromthe bench granting Petitioner's
request to withdrawits petition for assessment and the
proceedi ng was dismssed (Tr. 8). | hereby AFFIRM that ruling.

NCORT 79-51-P

Thi s docket involves one violation of 30 CFR 75.400. The
regul ati on provides that "[c]oal dust, including float coal dust
deposi ted on rock-dusted surfaces, |oose coal, and other
conbustible materials, shall be cleaned up and not be permtted
to accumul ate in active workings, or on electric equi pment
therein."

After considering the evidence which both parties placed on
the record, a decision was issued fromthe bench which sets forth
findi ngs
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as to the fact of the violation and the statutory criteria. This
deci sion from pages 84-91 of the transcript, with grammtica
corrections and some changes where the text is garbled, is set
forth bel ow

The first matter that | have to decide, of course, is
whet her or not there was a violation and if there is
found to be a violation, then | have to nmake findi ngs
fromthis record on the criteria in order to assess the
appropriate penalty.

Mich was made of the O d Ben decision, that is, 8 IBMA
98, (1977), and that was by the Board of M ne
Qperations Appeal s, which reviewed the case com ng up
under the Coal Mne Act. Now then, | have had the
opportunity to review this particul ar decision and
won't say that the words that | amnow going to state
are the last word on the matter, but here is ny belief:
that the decision lays down certain criteria for the
i nspectors to follow and I amgoing to hold at | east
for now, that this is to be discretionary and advisory.
| don't say it isn't inportant, that maybe the
i nspector should follow that and perhaps by failing to
follow it, maybe the Secretary takes the risk of not
sustaining its case when it gets into court. But | am
going to hold that the nmere fact of the failure to
follow that woul d not nean that MSHA coul d not have a
sust ai nabl e case.

There are, however, certain other requirements which
the Board has laid down and | believe those are
requi renents which I would have to follow in assessing
this case. And the first one is that an accunul ation
of a conbustible material existed in the active
wor ki ngs and on el ectrical equipnent in the active
wor ki ngs of a coal mne. M finding on that is that
there were conbustibl e accunul ations here. | will give
you the reason. First, | want to state, however, that
none of these findings at this point bear on either the
seriousness or the degree of negligence. | amdealing
merely with the fact of the violation. M reason for
finding that there was an accunul ation is based on the
i nspector's testinmony. | accept his testinony that
there was relatively fine dust in an area, covering
guess anywhere fromten by ten to fifteen feet around
the tail piece, and up to three inches in depth and
tapering off. | don't suppose that this would be a
| arge accunul ation, but | think that it is a pile of
dust and it did accunmulate. The nmere fact that he
didn't see it accumulating at the tinme, | don't think
is inmportant. It was there and it had accumul at ed, at
| east insofar as whether it was an accunulation within
the nmeaning of the Act. And certainly it was of a
conbustible material since it was coal and coal dust.
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The next requirenent -- this is again according to the Board --

that the coal nmine operator was aware and by exerci se of due
di I igence and concern for safety of the mners should have been
aware of the existence of such accunulation. To continue on the
guesti on of awareness, ny finding would be that the operator
shoul d have been aware of this. And I will try to give ny
reasons here if | can. The inspector was the only w tness that
testified that saw or was near this accunulation until after it
was cl eaned up. Nobody testified as to having seen it
bef orehand, so the question of awareness it seens to ne, depends
to a degree on howlong it was there. And whether, therefore, it
shoul d have been observed by the preshift inspector or onshift
i nspector or other people that normally inspect this area of the
mne. And the length of tinme that it was there again depends to
a degree on the inspector's testinony, or at least | accept his
testinmony as to the fact that it had been there for sonetine and
probably before that shift. 1In other words, it existed fromthe
prior shift.

I recognize that others did testify there was a cl eanup
plan and it was regularly conplied with and that, and
t he presunption being then, therefore, that the
accunul ati on could not have been there that |ong. But
you see, nobody el se had been at the site around this
m ne. The inspector made his eval uati on based on the
| ooks of it, the way in which it appeared to himthat

it had accumulated. It is possible that even though
there is a plan in effect, it had been cl eaned up
within a reasonable tinme. It is difficult to say. But

there was nobody that testified that he was there on
that shift or on the end of the last shift and that it
wasn't there at that tine. Any evidence |like that |

t hi nk woul d have certainly been sufficient to rebut the
i nspector's testinmony, but on the basis of the record
as | have it, | believe that | would have to give his
testimony wei ght and | accept that | find, therefore,
that it was there for sonetinme and shoul d have been

not ed.

Furthernore, even if the plan was being followed there
was an accunul ation that, again accepting the
i nspector's testinmony, did create a potential hazard.
It was up to the belt. It is true it wasn't over the
roller, but it was up to the belt. It was being kicked
up. If it was up that far, that it could be blown into
the air, it seenms to me that it certainly had the
potential for a hazard there. So, therefore, even if
the plan was being followed on a daily basis, it
appeared to ne, and | would say it was the kind of
thing that should have been cl eaned up on an
accel erated basis or sonetime during the course of the
shift.
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That brings us down then to the third and final requirenent which

the Board has laid out, and that is the operator failed to cl ean
up the accumulation or failed to undertake to clean it up within
a reasonable tinme after discovering or within a reasonable tine
after discovery should have been nade. | believe | have already
addressed that in my comments on how |l ong the accumnul ati on
apparently existed I have nmade sone notes here, and this may be
somewhat repititious, but it is based on the inspector's
testinmony that this was conparatively fine dust even if not fl oat
coal dust, and it was being picked up by the belt. It was an
accunul ation that would need to be cleaned up, perhaps on an
accel erated basis nore than once a shift or wthout waiting for
the normal once-a-shift cleanup. | recognize that M. O Quinn
did testify that this was not, in his view, a real bad
accunul ation and it probably would not need to be cleaned up, in
his view, until it had reached the roller, in which case it would
create a hazard. And | amgoing to take that kind of testinony
into account as far as the gravity is concerned, but | do not
give his testinony on that a great deal of weight otherw se
i nsofar as the hazard involved is concerned. | conclude,
therefore, that, that this accunmulation did constitute a
violation of 30 CFR 75. 400.

The criteria for the assessnent of a penalty are:
First, the history. As | previously indicated, there
is no indication of a significant history, and I would
so find. There apparently was no other violation that
woul d invol ve this particul ar standard.

Secondly, the conpany is small, based on the production
of 700 tons a day and the enploynment of twenty or so
m ners.

Good Faith. The m ne operator did abate this violation
promptly and in good faith. Based on G2, which the
i nspector wote, the coal dust and fine coal was
renoved pronptly.

There is another criterion; that is, whether the fine
t hat woul d be assessed here would affect the operator's
ability to continue in business and there was not hi ng
adduced whi ch woul d indicate any reasonable fine here
woul d affect the operator's ability. So I so find.
There are two other criteria; the first is negligence
and | have al ready somewhat indicated, | believe, ny
finding on that in ny finding on the fact of the
violation. | believe that this operator should have
known of an accunul ati on whi ch has been shown had
existed for sonetime. | accept the statenments that an
oral cleanup plan was in
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ef fect and was being followed and so therefore, it would nmean
this mght have been an oversi ght or sonmehow it was overl ooked.

Al so, | recognize the fact that there is some dispute that this
was a pile or an accunul ati on whi ch needed to be cl eaned up
imediately. It is to that extent, perhaps, partly a judgnment

proposition, and so | would find as the result, small or little
negligence in the failure to clean up

Insofar as gravity is concerned I would find, based on
the fact that it was a conparatively smal

accunul ation, that it was not serious. | don't believe
that | have ever had a matter in which an accumul ati on
was of this relatively small size. | don't nean for a

nonment that this doesn't nean it couldn't be hazardous,
dependi ng on the conditions. And | have al ready
indicated that | accept the inspector's statenent. He
was there and he saw it and he was able to nmake the
judgnment on the spot and | accept that. But | do have
to agree that it was not very large, and as indicated
by the fact that it was cleaned up in a very short
time.

(Tr. 84-91).

Respondent was assessed a penalty of $25 for the violation
(Tr. 92). | hereby AFFIRM the above decision and penalty and it
i s ORDERED t hat Respondent pay the sum of $25 for the violation
in NORT 79-51-P within 30 days of the date of the issuance of
t hi s deci sion.

NCORT 79-57-P

Thi s docket involves one violation of 30 CFR 75.200 whi ch
covers roof-control progranms and plans. The pertinent portion of
this standard reads:

Each operator shall undertake to carry out on a
continuing basis a programto inprove the roof control
system of each coal mne and the nmeans and neasures to
acconpl i sh such system The roof and ribs of al
active underground roadways, travelways, and worKking
pl aces shall be supported or otherw se controlled
adequately to protect persons fromfalls of the roof or
ribs. A roof control plan and revisions thereof
suitable to the roof conditions and m ning system of
each coal mne and approved by the Secretary shall be
adopted and set out in printed formon or before My
29, 1970. The plan shall show the type of support and
spaci ng approved by the Secretary.

On the basis of the evidence which Petitioner and Respondent
i ntroduced at the hearing, a decision was issued fromthe bench
which sets forth findings as to the fact of the violation and the
statutory
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criteria. The decision found on pages 124-130 of the transcript,
wi th granmatical corrections and some changes where the
transcript is garbled, is set forth bel ow

The first point that | nust decide, obviously, is
whet her or not there was a violation as alleged. In
| ooking at this, | tend to agree with M. Ri chardson
but don't go as far as he goes. Mst of this can be
reconcil ed between the testinony of M. Oaens and the
i nspector, with the exception of M. Owens' testinony
that he was there. Now, | don't know how I can
reconcile that; the testinmony just differs. [While]
M. Tipton did say it was to the best of his know edge,
it was possible that he at the nonent was not aware of
the presence of M. Onens. In any event, as | see it,
I just think the problemhere is that we are | ooki ng at
a sketch that's not to scale, so it puts everything out
of proportion. [See Exhibit G3.] If we could see this
as it really was, with that to scale, with the actua
feet there, and the roof bolter, the size of the roof
bolter, howit went in that entry and how far it would
extend out, and so forth, | think I would get a nmuch
di fferent perspective. That's the kind of perspective
| want to try to elaborate on here, and it will be the
basis for ny decision. The basis for it, of course, is
the area of unsupported roof. | think it is admtted
that's not to scale and surely was smaller than this,
and therefore, nearer the right rib.

The testinony certainly is [not] conflicting on a
nunber of points; that is, that a bolt was being
installed. There was a bolt being installed; there
were no jacks set. The wi tnesses agree on that. The
jacks were |laying down, |ocated away fromthe face
There is sone real difference as to where exactly they

were | ocated, but they were not set. It could have
been that those jacks were originally set at that face
possi bly across or maybe just on the left side, | don't
know. They could have been set -- that's one
possibility -- and then renpved because of the plan to
cone in there and to drill an additional hole in that
unsupported roof. But | don't look at the allegation
that narrowWy. It said safety posts were not
installed. | look upon that as being not set then

wi th m ners working under unsupported roof. There was
no di sagreenment there was sone unsupported roof. And
if there are mners working in there, the plan, as I
understand it, would have required those [jacks] to be
set and not only to be set but to remain there, until
-- that is, as long as sonebody was working in that

ar ea.

Now, we cone to the second [point], and there is an
apparent di sagreenent as to where that roof bolter was
| ocated and what the bolter was actually doing. And this
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is where the lack of scale really throws us. It is possible that
both nen were saying the same thing; that what |ooked to the

i nspector like bolting in that series, nmight have been [bolting]
the brow, or vice versa. W don't exactly know what it was, but
the inspector did testify in spite of all that, [that] this
bolter -- and this is the inportant thing -- was working there in
nonsupported roof, where the jacks were not located; that is, not
set where they should have been set. That they had been there
originally, I don't think is too material. |If the roof bolter
was working there and bolting a brow and was still close up to

t hat unsupported roof, it was, as | would construe it, a
violation of that plan, which requires those jacks to be
installed. Furthernore, [they are] to remain there in sequence
as | read the plan, until the permanent supports are put in.

I grant you there possibly could be sonme variation for
this additional bolting that was contenpl ated, but it
certainly wouldn't permt a roof bolter to work in
there. So, weighing all the testinmony and attenpting
as | can to reconcile the two different w tnesses who
testified, |I sinply find that there was a bolting
taki ng place without the jacks being in place at the
time and | eaving a mner in nonsupported roof. This, I
think is in violation of the plan, and therefore, in
violation of 30 CFR 75. 200.

That |l eads ne to the assessnent of the penalty and
various criteria which I nust find on that. The first
item of course, is the history and the print-out does
show [prior] citations or notices, starting in 1976 and
up through March of 1978, six prior violations of 30
CFR 75.200. These could be, of course, any kind of a
roof violation, not necessarily the failure to set the
posts. It does show sone history, however, and | wll
take that into account. The conpany, based on the
testinmony, is a small conpany, producing 400 tons daily
and enpl oyi ng twenty-eight nmen. There is no evidence
on the effect of the operator's ability to continue in
busi ness, based on the penalty to be assessed. So, |
need not take that into account. There was no evidence
that | recall of good faith efforts to achieve rapid
compliance. | will find -- well, I will just |eave
that then as a neutral or a criteria on which there's
no particul ar evidence to take into account.

That | eaves the seriousness, as well as the negligence.
But insofar as the seriousness is concerned, this does
constitute a roof violation. And | believe it is
practically self-evident that a failure to follow that
pl an, and particul arly worki ng under nonsupported roof,
is a serious violation and | find it to be serious.
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(Tr.

The negligence -- on this counsel for the Governnent has asked
me to find ordinary negligence -- | think there is some negligence
in the sense that the mne foreman and the section forenman were
there and were aware or shoul d have been aware of what was going
on. There is a difficulty, though, and it nmay be that there was
good faith involved in what you could describe as [an] unusual or
different situation and they were attenpting to adjust it;
nanely, a portion of the roof that was, that was scaling, I
guess, was the term or falling and had to be bolted or bl asted
out. So in connection with that deviation, you m ght say, from
the plan, they were not actually following it strictly, but had
left an area of roof unsupported. | find sone negligence at
least, if not ordinary negligence. So, | believe that conpletes
then, all of the criteria.

124-130) .

The Governnent had previously asked for $1,000.00 for
this alleged violation which I found to be a violation
I think this amount, in the circunstances as reveal ed
here in the course of this hearing now, is somewhat
high. In review ng the anbunts assessed for the
previous citations of roof control, they are
consi derably | ower, and the hi ghest being $150. 00

paynment. | recognize, though, that we are dealing now
with a history and in that context | believe that a
somewhat hi gher assessnent is justified. So, | would

add anot her $100.00 to that, making the assessnent for
this violation $250. 00.

hereby AFFI RM t he above decision. It is ORDERED that
Respondent

pay the sum of $250 for the violation in NORT 79-57-P

within 30 days of the date of the issuance of this decision.

Franklin P. Mchels
Admi ni strative Law Judge

e
~FOOTNOTE_ONE

1 Exhibit "A" of the petition for assessnment of civil

penalties listed 13 other citations besides the four involving 30
CFR 75.1710. At the hearing, Petitioner advised that these other
al | eged viol ati ons had been settled at the assessnment conference

| evel

t hese (Tr.

and that the petition had been incorrect in so listing

6-7).



